Zero Waste Analysis Tool Manual

Diversion Potential and Greenhouse Gas Emissions Reduction Analysis Tool



Contents

List of Tables	3
List of Figures	3
Tool Overview	4
Tool Use Description	4
File	4
Purpose	4
Goal	4
User	4
Tool Use – Step by Step	5
Data Needed	5
Generating Emissions and Material-Specific Emission Factors	5
The steps to generating factors used in the Zero Waste Analysis are:	5
Choosing the Right Factors	7
Customizing	8
Setting up the Spreadsheet for the Analysis	8
Sources and Assumptions	
Calculations	
Interpreting and Presenting the Results	

List of Tables

List of Figures

Figure 1. Image showing the US EPA WARM Tool Webpage. Click on Excel-Based Tool to download the tool
<i>Figure 2</i> . EPA Emission Factors Spreadsheet for the Zero Waste Analysis Tool. Column H is the Source Reduction Factor used in the analysis, and Column I is the Recycling or Composting Factor
used7
Figure 3 . Zero Waste Analysis shows the factor and material columns with characterization data. Column A contains the Source Reduction Factors, and Column B contains the Recycling or Composting Factors. Columns C contains materials from the Material Characterization Study, and Column D has the associated percentage of material in the destructive disposal stream. Finally, Column E shows the number of tons by material type going to destructive disposal for the sector (residents) being analyzed
Figure 4 . The initiatives (policy, program, or infrastructure recommendations to get to Zero Waste) are in Row 3. For each initiative, three types of data are calculated, including Capture Rate, Tons Captured, and MTCO2E Reduced. Use a series of at least three colors to differentiate among the initiatives. This helps to keep the spreadsheet readable and organized
Figure 5 . Zero Waste Analysis showing the totals. Columns X, Y, and Z show the totals by material type. Row 61 shows the totals for each Analysis (Initiative #6 is shown). Columns AA, AB, and AC, along with Cell X62, Y62, and Z62, show QA/QC for this analysis
<i>Figure 7.</i> Calculate the capture rate, tons captured, and MTCO2E reduced for each material type associated with the initiative. Then, add up the totals in columns Q and R. For example, the capture rate for this initiative for this sector is in Cell P45
Figure 8 . Add each initiative's total tons captured (column V) and the total MTCO2E reduced (column W). Then, divide the total tons for the initiative by the tons going to destructive disposal (for Initiative 6, 3,586 tons / 241,493 tons = 1.5%) to estimate the capture rate for that initiative. Repeat these steps for each initiative analyzed. Figure 8 also shows the totals for each material type (capture rate, tons diverted, and MTCO2E) and QA/QC calculations.
Figure 9 . The results tab shows the tons of materials estimated to be reduced or diverted from destructive disposal annually for each initiative by sector and total. It also shows the GHG emissions estimated to be reduced by each initiative by sector and the total annually
V / / W

Tool Overview

The **Diversion Potential and Greenhouse Gas Emissions Reduction Analysis Tool** or **Analysis Tool** is a scenario planning exercise that estimates the tons of material diverted from destructive disposal¹ and the metric tons of carbon dioxide equivalent (MTCO2E) reduced annually when all Zero Waste initiatives are implemented. This tool is taught during the Advanced Zero Waste Planning Class.

The Analysis Tool is used once all the Zero Waste initiatives are chosen. It is the next to the last tool used during the community planning process (see the Zero Waste USA Tools Manual).² The results show the annual tons estimated diverted and the annual GHG emissions estimated to be reduced once all initiatives are implemented.

Tool Use Description

The Analysis Tool is a scenario planning tool that estimates tons and GHG emissions that can be reduced or diverted annually once all the Zero Waste initiatives are implemented in a municipality. In addition, this tool estimates the new total diversion for a community once all Zero Waste initiatives are implemented.

File

The Zero Waste Analysis Tool is created in an Excel file. Different from the other Zero Waste USA tools, this is not ready-made. Each analysis needs its own file and spreadsheet; therefore, it's unavailable as a plug-in-and-go tool.

Purpose

This tool analyzes each initiative to estimate the amount of materials that can be reduced or diverted from destructive disposal per initiative and in total annually. It also calculates the GHG emissions estimated to be reduced for each initiative and annually for all Zero Waste initiatives.

Goal

This Analysis Tool aims to show a municipality the total impact of Zero Waste initiatives in reaching their goal. The chosen initiatives should work together to help the city achieve Zero Waste (i.e., 90% or greater diversion of destructive disposal tons). The estimated tons diverted through the initiatives will be added to the total tons diverted in the baseline year to estimate the **new total annual diversion** for the analyzed municipality manual to read about the New Total Diversion Tool).³

User

Participants taking the Advanced Zero Waste Planning classes will learn how to use this tool. In addition, Zero Waste professionals, including consultants and municipal employees, can use this tool to analyze the Zero Waste policies, programs, or infrastructure desired or included in a Zero Waste plan to estimate the impact.

^o Zero Waste USA's community planning toolkit guides the Zero Waste planning process. The tools mentioned here are Generation and Diversion Tool & Estimating New Total Diversion Tool. The Analysis Tool is used after the Generation and Diversion Tool and before the Estimating New Diversion Tool.

¹ Destructive disposal means landfill or incineration.

² Zero Waste USA created a community planning toolkit and a Tools Manual. They are both found on <u>Zero Waste USA's Resources page</u>. ³ Zero Waste USA's community planning toolkit guides the Zero Waste planning process. The tools mentioned here are Generation and

Tool Use – Step by Step

Data Needed

Data needed to perform the Zero Waste Analysis include (Table 1):

- The **total tons** going to destructive disposal and the type of destructive disposal used (landfill and/or incineration and the total going to each).
- The tons of material going to destructive disposal by sector (i.e., single-family, multifamily, non-residential industrial, commercial, institutional, construction and demolition, and/or municipal operations).
- **Initiatives** to analyze the type of initiative (policy, program, or infrastructure) and the sector it applies to (single-family, multifamily, non-residential industrial, commercial, institutional, construction and demolition, and/or mandal operations).
 - The initiatives being analyzed are based on the ones that have been decided on through a lengthy stakeholder process using the Zero Waste USA community planning toolkit.
- Material Characterization Study data by sector for the municipality being analyzed or similar city reduction
- **Material-Specific Emission Factors** based on the type of destructive disposal (landfill, incineration, or both) in the municipality being analyzed (U.S. EPA WARM Tool).

Table 1. List of data needed for the Zero Waste Analysis Tool and the source for those data. Proxy data can be used if needed. Proxy data used should be noted on the spreadsheet.

Data	Source	Proxy
Tons going to DD	City or County that you're working with	Proxy is not recommended
Tons going to DD by Sector	City or County that you're working with	If sector data are unavailable, the analysis can be completed community-wide instead of by sector.
Initiatives	Zero Waste Planning process	Proxy is not recommended
Material Characterization	City or County that you're	Proxy characterization data are
Study	working with	ok
Factors	U.S. EPA WARM Tool	None

Generating Emissions and Material-Specific Emission Factors

The steps to generating factors used in the Zero Waste Analysis are:

- 1. Download the latest version of the WARM Tool (2022 Version 16).⁴
- 2. Open the WARM Tool (Excel file) (Figure 1). Read the material related to the WARM Tool on the website and the instructions tab on the Excel file if you are unfamiliar with this tool.
- 3. In the WARM Tool on the second tab (**Analysis Input**), input data related to the municipality's baseline destructive disposal technique (landfill or incineration) is being analyzed. This is related to questions #3-#10. Note: There are more options if the baseline destructive disposal is landfilling, and the National Average or Default is always an option if specific details are unknown.

Zero Waste Analysis Tool – Manual

⁴ US EPA <u>Waste Reduction Model Tool Version 16</u>

Figure 1. Image showing the US EPA WARM Tool Webpage. Click on Excel-Based Tool to download the tool.



- 4. In the WARM Tool, on the fourth tab (Analysis Results MTCO2E) is the list of emissions based on data inputs on the second tab. These are the emissions you will use to calculate materialspecific emission factors.
- 5. Take the factors from tab four and create a tab in your Zero Waste Analysis Tool Excel file called EPA Emission Factors.
- 6. Calculate the factors for source reduction and recycling or composting (Figure 2).⁵ For more detail, refer to the Zero Waste USA document called Emissions Factors, Generation and Calculations July 2023.
- 7. Source Reduction Emissions Factor Formula for Glass (Incineration) = (0.55)⁶ MTCO2E per ton
 - a. (Source reduction emissions x 1 short ton/1 short ton) (emissions from incineration x 1 short ton/1 short ton) = Source Reduction Emissions Factor
 - b. Example: (-0.53 MTCO2E * 1 / 1) (0.02 MTCO2E * 1 / 1) = -0.55 MTCO2E
- 8. Recycling Emissions Factor Formula for Glass (Incineration) = (0.30) MTCO2E per ton
 - a. (Recycling emissions x 1 short ton/1 short ton) (emissions from incineration x 1 short ton/1 short ton) = Recycling Emissions Factor
 - b. Example: (-0.28 MTCO2E * 1 / 1) (0.03 MTCO2E * 1 / 1) = -0.30 MTCO2E
- 9. Composting Emissions Factor Formula Food Waste (Incineration) = 0.0 MTCO2E
 - a. (Composting emissions x 1 short ton/1 short ton) (emissions from incineration x 1 short ton/1 short ton) = Composting Emissions Factor

⁵ US EPA Waste Reduction Model

⁶ GHG emissions produced are a positive number, and GHG emissions reduced or saved are negative or shown using parentheses (). Zero Waste Analysis Tool – Manual 6

- b. Example: (-0.12 MTCO2E * 1 / 1) (-0.12 MTCO2E *1 / 1) = 0.0 MTCO2E
- 10. Color code the factors spreadsheet to differentiate the material types along the rows. Also, color code the two columns that contain the Factors for the Analysis (Columns H & I).
- 11. The information at the top of the spreadsheet should include the following.
 - a. The parameters that were chosen to generate the factors.
 - b. Link to the US EPA Warm Model.
 - c. Definitions of what is on the table.
- 12. The information at the bottom of the spreadsheet should include the following.
 - a. The calculations for the factors available for the analysis.
 - b. Links to <u>Documentation Chapters for Greenhouse Gas Emission, Energy, and Economic</u> <u>Factors Used in the Waste Reduction Model (WARM)</u>
 - c. Material-specific emissions factor calculation examples

Figure 2. EPA Emission Factors Spreadsheet for the Zero Waste Analysis Tool. Column H is the Source Reduction Factor used in the analysis and Column I is the Recycling or Composting Factor used.

24	А	В	С	D	E	F	G	н	I.	J
1	Emission Factors for Pennsylv	ania - Combusti	on - National A	verage - Colum	nns H & I are us	ed in the analysi	s			
2	MTCO2E = Metric Tons of Carbo	n Dioxide Equival	ent							
3	Note: Negative values denote net	GHG emissions	reduction or car	bon storage from	a materials mai	nagement practice				
4	Source: US EPA Waste Reducti	on Model - Versio	on 16	5		5 1				
5	Per Ton Estimates of GHG Emission	ons for Baseline a	nd Alternative M	anagement Scen	arios			Use In A	Analysis	
			GHG Emissions			GHG Emissions		Net MTCO2E	Net MTCO2E	GHG Emission
		GHG Emissions	per Ton of	GHG Emissions	GHG Emissions	ner Ton of	GHG Emissions	reduced: Source	reduced: Recycle	per Ton of
		per Ton of	Material	per Ton of	per Ton of	Matorial	per Ton of	Reduction/Reuse	or Compost	Material
		Material	Source	Material	Material	Combustod	Material	* instead of	instead of	Anaerobically
_	Material	(MTCO2E)	(MTCO2E)	(MTCO2E)	(MTCO2E)	(MTCO2E)	(MTCO2F)	(MTCO2F)	(MTCO2E)	(MTCO2F)
6	Wateria	(1110022)	(MICO2E)	(INTCO2E)	(INTCO2C)	(MITCOZE)	(INTCOZE)	(1110020)	(1110022)	(MICO2L)
7	Corrugated Containers	5.58	(5.58)	(3.14)	0.18	(0.44)	NA	(5.13)	(2.69)	NA
8	Magazines/third-class mail	8.57	(8.57)	(3.07)	(0.43)	(0.32)	NA NA	(8.25)	(2.75)	NA
9	Newspaper	4.68	(4.68)	(2.71)	(0.85)	(0.50)	NA NA	(4.17)	(2.20)	NA
10	Olice Paper	7.95	(7.95)	(2.80)	1.13	(0.42)	INA NA	(1.52)	(2.44)	NA NA
11	Taythaaka	0.17	(0.17)	(2.02)	(0.85)	(0.50)	NA NA	(0.00)	(2.12)	NA NA
12	Mixed Deper (constal)	9.02	(9.02)	(3.10)	1.13	(0.42)	INA NA	(8.00)	(2.08)	INA NA
13	Mixed Paper (general)	6.07	(6.07)	(3.55)	0.07	(0.44)	INA NA	(5.03)	(3.10)	NA NA
14	Mixed Paper (primarily residential)	0.00	(0.00)	(3.55)	0.02	(0.44)	I NA	(0.00)	(3.10)	NA NA
15	Food Woote) 1.31	(7.37)	(3.58)	0.11	(0.40)	(0.12)	(0.90)	(3.18)	(0.02)
10	Food Waste	3.00	(3.00)	INA NA	0.50	(0.12)	(0.12)	(3.54)	0.00	(0.03)
17	Food Waste (non-meat)	0.70	(0.76)	INA NA	0.50	(0.12)	(0.12)	(0.04)	0.00	(0.03)
18	Pood Waste (meat only)	15.10	(15.10)	INA NA	0.40	(0.12)	(0.12)	(14.98)	0.00	(0.03)
19	Boulter	30.09	(30.09)		0.43	(0.12)	(0.12)	(29.97)	0.00	(0.03)
20	Croine	2.40	(2.43)	NA NA	1.49	(0.12)	(0.12)	(2.33)	0.00	(0.03)
21	Broad	0.02	(0.62)	NA NA	1.37	(0.12)	(0.12)	(0.50)	0.00	(0.03)
22	Fruits and Vegetables	0.00	(0.00)		0.99	(0.12)	(0.12)	(0.34)	0.00	(0.03)
20	Dainy Products	1.75	(0.44)		0.23	(0.12)	(0.12)	(0.52)	0.00	(0.03)
24	Vard Trimmings	NA	(1.73)		(0.20)	(0.12)	(0.12)	(1.03) NA	0.00	(0.03)
25	Grace	NA	NA	NA	0.12	(0.15)	(0.05)	NA	0.09	0.03
27	Leaves	NA	NA	NA	(0.53)	(0.15)	(0.05)	NA	0.09	(0.14)
28	Branches	NA	NA	NA	(0.53)	(0.15)	(0.05)	NA	0.09	(0.22)
29	HDPE	142	(1.42)	(0.76)	0.02	1.42	(0.00) NA	(2.84)	(2.18)	NA
80	LDPE	1.80	(1.80)	NA	0.02	1.43	NA	(3.22)	NA NA	NA
81	PET	2.17	(2.17)	(1.04)	0.02	1.31	NA	(3.49)	(2.35)	NA
82	LLDPE	1.58	(1.58)	NA	0.02	1.42	NA	(3.00)	NA NA	NA
33	PP	1.52	(1.52)	(0.79)	0.02	1.42	NA	(2.95)	(2.22)	NA
84	PS	2.50	(2.50)	NA	0.02	1.77	NA	(4.27)	NA	NA
85	PVC	1.93	(1.93)	NA	0.02	0.72	NA	(2.64)	NA	NA
86	Mixed Plastics	1.87	(1.87)	(0.93)	0.02	1.36	NA	(3.23)	(2.28)	NA
	< > Initiatives	PA Emission Fa	ctors PA DE	P Composition	Data Sprea	dsheet Analy	sis Residential	Analysis Com	mercial Resul	ts +

Choosing the Right Factors

Once all the factors are generated and the **EPA Emission Factors** spreadsheet is created in Excel, the appropriate factors will be chosen. During this process, match up factors with material types from the

material characterization study on the analysis spreadsheet. (See setting up the spreadsheet below). Not all factors will be used; some can be used as proxies for material types.⁷

Customizing

This analysis is customized by using local material characterization data for each sector and generating factors based on local data. It is also customized because the initiatives will be uniquely chosen through the stakeholder-driven Zero Waste planning process.

Setting up the Spreadsheet for the Analysis

A new Excel file will be created each time a Zero Waste Analysis is performed. The file will minimally contain the following tabs: an Initiatives tab, an EPA Emission Factors tab, an analysis tab for each sector (e.g., Residents, Commercial) tab, and a Results tab. The Excel file may also contain a tab showing the blank spreadsheet and a tab showing the characterization data.

Setting up the analysis spreadsheet is an important step that takes time. The best way to begin is by looking at an example spreadsheet. For students, that can be the example file provided by your instructor. For a professional, it can be by looking at a past analysis or contacting the Zero Waste USA instructor for guidance.

The analysis spreadsheet generally included the source reduction and recycling/composting factors in the first two columns. The following two columns have the material characterization data. Cell F3 contains the number of tons going to destructive disposal from the analyzed sector (e.g., residential tons going to DD in Delaware County, PA is 241,493). Column F (Figure 3) applies the characterization data by material type to the tons going to DD. For example, according to the PA Waste Characterization Study, 3.6% of residential materials going to the landfill in the southeast of Pennsylvania is *Corrugated Cardboard/Kraft Paper*, which equates to 8,687 tons. The following two columns have the destructive disposal data related to the characterization data by material type (Figure 3). To calculate the number of tons represented in the DD stream by material type, multiply the percentage by the total tons. For example, the formula for calculating the tons of material of *Other Plastic* in the residential stream is = E^4*D5 , which is 3.6% * 241,493 tons = 8,687 tons.

⁷ Using WARM Emission Factors for Materials and Pathways Not in WARM

Figure 3. Zero Waste Analysis shows the factor and material columns with characterization data. Column A contains the Source Reduction Factors, and Column B contains the Recycling or Composting Factors. Column C includes materials from the Material Characterization Study, and Column D has the associated percentage of material in the destructive disposal stream. Finally, Column E shows the number of tons by material type going to destructive disposal for the sector (residents) being analyzed.

Ę	Aut	oSa	ve On C) 🖫 り・ 🤍 👻 Delco Zero	Waste An	alysis_Six Ini	tiatives_AZ\	NP Class_20	24•Saved∨		₽ s	earch
	File	Ho	me Inse	ert Page Layout Formulas Da	ta Rev	iew View	Help					
	<u></u>	X	Cut	Arial v 11 v	Δ^ ۸۳	$\equiv = 0$	- »- ·	ab, w	Iran Taut	6	eneral	
		۲'n	Conv			(=) * *	C& VV	rap iext		eneral	
	Paste		сору -	B I U - 🖓 -	<u>А</u> ~	ΞΞ	= = =	•= 🖶 M	lerge & Cente	er v	\$~%	9 500 -
	~	Ś	Format Pa	inter	_				2			
	0	Clipt	board	Font Font	L2		AI	ignment		Γ <u>ν</u>	Numb	er
				((£								
	AI		Y]:[2	Jx								
- 24	А		В	С	D	E	F	G	Н	1	J	К
1	Delawa	re C	County, PA	RESIDENTIAL Diversion Potential Analy	sis							
2	Commu	nity	MSW to I	ncinerator 2020								
	GHG		GHG				1. Single	Use Foodwa	are and Litter	0.00	A	(D)
	Emissio	n	Emission	DA DED Waste Characterization Study			Reducti	on Ordinand	ce (R & C) -	2. Pay	-AS-YOU-INI	0W (R) - ram
3	(SR)	3	(R or C)	September 2022	Fet %	Est Tons		Policy			one, arreg	am
5	()		(L31. 70	LSt. TONS	Canture	Tons	MTCO2e	Canture	Tons	MTC02e
4	MTCO2	e	MTCO2e	Delaware County MSW		241,493	Rate	Captured	Reduced	Rate	Captured	Reduced
5	_	5.1	-2.7	Corrugated Cardboard/Kraft Paper	3.6%	8,687						
6	-	4.2	-2.2	Newspaper	0.8%	1,927						
7	-	7.5	-2.4	Office/High Grade Paper	0.3%	720						
8		8.2	-2.8	Magazine & Catalogs Asentic Boxes & Cable Ton Cartons	0.6%	1,444						
10	-	5.6	-3.1	Mixed Recyclable Paper (Low Grade)	4.9%	11.826						
11	-	5.6	0.0	Compostable Paper	7.5%	18,105						
12	na		na	Non-recyclable Paper	2.4%	5,789						
13	-	3.5	-2.3	#1 PET Bottles & Jars	1.2%	2,893						
14	-	3.5	-2.3	#1 PET Non-Bottles & Containers	0.2%	478						
15 16	-	2.8	-2.2	#2 HDPE Natural Bottles #2 HDPE Colored Bottles	0.2%	4/8						
17		3.2	-2.3	#3-#7 Bottles	0.0%	-						
18	-	3.2	-2.3	#2-#7 Non-Bottle Rigid Containers	1.4%	3,376						
19	_	4.3	na	Expanded Polystyrene	0.7%	1,686						
20	-	3.2	na	Clean Retail Plastic Bags	0.1%	241						
21	-	3.2	na	Industrial Film	0.0%	-						
22	-	3.2	na	All Other Film	5.5%	13,275						
23	-	3.2	na	Remainder/Composite Plastic	1.8%	4,342						
25		1.4	-0.2	Steel Cans	0.5%	1.203						
26	_	4.8	-9.2	Aluminum Cans	0.6%	1,444						
27	-	4.8	-9.2	Other Aluminum	0.4%	961						
28	-	1.4	-0.2	Other Ferrous Metals	1.6%	3,859						
29	-	2.6	-3.4	Other Non-Ferrous Metals	0.6%	1,444						
31	-	0.6	-0.3	Green Glass Containers	0.4%	961						
32	-	0.6	-0.3	Brown Glass Containers	0.4%	961						
33	-	0.6	-0.3	Non-Recyclable Glass	0.9%	2,169						
34	-	3.5	0.0	Food Waste	14.8%	35,734						
35 20	NA		0.1	Yard Waste - Grass	1.6%	3,859						
37		16	-1.1	Wood - Unnainted	1.8%	13,510						
38		1.6	-1.1	Wood - Painted	4.0%	9.655						
39	-	4.8	-3.5	Textiles & Leather Products	6.8%	16,417						
40	na		na	Diapers & Sanitary Products	3.9%	9,413						
41	na		na	Animal By-Products	4.0%	9,655						
42	na		na	Fines	2.2%	5,306						
43	na	4 4	na 10	Other Organics	2.4%	5,791						
	< >		Init	tiatives EPA Emission Factors	PA DEP	Composit	ion Data	Spread	sheet A	nalysis R	esidential	Analys

The Analysis Spreadsheet also contains the Initiatives that correlate to the analyzed sector. The initiatives are listed in row 3 (Figure 4). Within each initiative are three columns: capture rate, tons diverted, and MTCO2E (metric tons carbon dioxide equivalent) reduced (Figure 4). Additional information can be placed in the cell with the initiative name, such as the sector or type of initiative (policy, program, or infrastructure).

Figure 4. The initiatives (policy, program, or infrastructure recommendations to get to Zero Waste) are in Row 3. For each initiative, three types of data are calculated, including Capture Rate, Tons Captured, and MTCO2E Reduced. Use a series of at least three colors to differentiate among the initiatives. This helps to keep the spreadsheet readable and organized.

AutoSave On	X AutoSave On O B ∽ C → → Delco Zero Waste Analysis_Six Initiatives_AZWP Class_2024 • Saved → P Search														
File <u>Home</u> Inser	t Page Layout Formulas Dat	a Rev	iew View	Help											
Cut	Arial ~ 11 ~	A^ A	Ξ = (≡ ≫~~	₫ <mark>₽</mark> W	rap Text	0	General		-		N	ormal_FRAN	K Nor	mal
Paste	B I U ~ ⊞ ~ 🖄 ~	Α -	≡≡	≡ .	•= 🖶 M	erge & Cente	r ~	\$~%	9 🔝 🗄	00 Conc	litional Fo atting ∽ T	rmat as able ~	ood	Neu	itral
Clipboard	Font Font	L2		AI	ignment		L2	Numl	ber	5				Styles	
	. / f .				-										
AAI V : A	√ Jx													_	
A B	C C DENTIAL Diversion Detection Another	D	E	F	G	Н	1	J	K	L	M	N	0	Р	Q
1 Delaware County, PA R	cincrator 2020	515													
	cilierator 2020														
GHG GHG Emission Emission s Factors s Factors F	PA DEP Waste Characterization Study			1. Single Reducti	Use Foodwa on Ordinanc	re and Litter e (R & C) -	2. Pay P	-As-You-Th olicy & Prog	row (R) - ram	3. Univers Po	al Recyclin	ig (R & C) - ram	4. Univers - F	al Compos	sting (R & C) gram
3 (SR) (R or C)	September 2022	Est. %	Est. Tons		Folicy										
	Delaware County MSW		241 402	Capture Rate	Tons	MTCO2e Reduced	Capture	Tons	MTCO2e Reduced	Capture	Tons	MTCO2e Reduced	Capture	Tons	MTCO2e Reduced
5 -51 -27 0	Corrugated Cardboard/Kraft Paper	3.6%	8 687	IXate	Capitreu	Reduced	Trate	Captureu	Itteduced	Trate	Capitreu	Reduced	Trate	Captureu	Ixeduced
6 -4.2 -2.2	Vewspaper	0.8%	1.927												
7 -7.5 -2.4 0	Office/High Grade Paper	0.3%	720												
8 -8.2 -2.8 N	lagazine & Catalogs	0.6%	1,444												
9 na na A	Aseptic Boxes & Gable Top Cartons	0.2%	478												
10 -5.6 -3.1 M	lixed Recyclable Paper (Low Grade)	4.9%	11,826												
11 -5.6 0.0 0	Compostable Paper	7.5%	18,105												
12 na na N	Non-recyclable Paper	2.4%	5,789											<u> </u>	
13 -3.5 -2.3 #	F1 PE1 Bottles & Jars	1.2%	2,893											<u> </u>	
14 -3.5 -2.3 #	PET Non-Bottles & Containers	0.2%	4/8												
15 -2.8 -2.2 #	2 HDPE Colored Bottles	0.2%	961												
17 -3.2 -2.3 #	#3-#7 Bottles	0.0%	-												
18 -3.2 -2.3 #	#2-#7 Non-Bottle Rigid Containers	1.4%	3,376												
19 -4.3 na E	Expanded Polystyrene	0.7%	1,686												
20 -3.2 na C	Clean Retail Plastic Bags	0.1%	241												
21 -3.2 na Ir	ndustrial Film	0.0%	-												
22 -3.2 na A	All Other Film	5.5%	13,275												
23 -3.2 na E	Ourable/Bulky Rigid Plastics	1.8%	4,342												
24 -3.2 na F	Remainder/Composite Plastic	1.7%	4,101												
25 -1.4 -0.2 9	Steel Cans	0.5%	1,203												
26 -4.8 -9.2 A	Numinum Cans	0.6%	1,444												
27 -4.8 -9.2 C	Other Aluminum	0.4%	961												
28 -1.4 -0.2 C	Other Ferrous Metals	1.6%	3,859												
29 -2.6 -3.4 0	Other Non-Ferrous Metals	0.6%	1,444												
30 -0.6 -0.3 0	Clear Glass Containers	1.4%	3,376											<u> </u>	
32 -0.6 0.2	Brown Class Containers	0.4%	061												
33 -0.6 -0.3 M	Von-Recyclable Glass	0.4%	2 169												
34 -3.5 0.0 F	Food Waste	14.8%	35,734												
35 NA 0.1 Y	(ard Waste - Grass	1.6%	3,859												
36 NA 1.1 Y	/ard Waste - Other	5.6%	13,516												
37 -1.6 -1.1 V	Vood - Unpainted	1.8%	4,342												
38 -1.6 -1.1 V	Vood - Painted	4.0%	9,655												
39 -4.8 -3.5 T	Fextiles & Leather Products	6.8%	16,417												
		0.00/	0.110												

The last columns in the spreadsheet include the total for the capture rate, tons diverted, and MTCO2E reduced by material type along the rows. It also included the total capture rate, tons diverted, and MTCO2E for the analyzed sector (e.g., Residents). Finally, Quality Assurance/Quality Control (QA/QC) columns and cells are created to double-check all calculations (Figure 5).8

Figure 5. Zero Waste Analysis showing the totals. Columns X, Y, and Z show the totals by material type. Row 61 shows the totals for each Analysis (Initiative #6 is shown). Columns AA, AB, AC, and Cell X62, Y62, and Z62 show QA/QC for this analysis.

	AutoSave on O B ∽ < ⊂ → Delco Zero Waste Analysis_Six Initiatives_AZWP Class_2024 · Saved ∨													
F	File Ho	me Inser	: Page Layout Formulas Data Re	view Vie	ew Help									
		Cut	Arial ~ 11 ~ A^ A*	Ξ Ξ	≡ ≡ ≫ -	ab	Wrap Text		General		9		Normal_FRANK	Normal
	Paste	Format Dain	B I U ~ 🖽 ~ 🚣 ~	= =	= = =	=	Merge & Ce	nter ~	\$ ~ %	, 🤊 🗧 .0	Formatting ~	Format as Table ~	Good	Neutral
	Clin	board	Font F		Ali	anment		5	Nu	mber	5		Stv	les
						,								
A	A1	i X	\sqrt{Jx}											
	A B C D E U V W X Y Z AA AB AC 1 Delaware County, PA RESIDENTIAL Diversion Potential Analysis													AC
1	Delawar	e County, P	A RESIDENTIAL Diversion Potential Analy	/sis										
2	ouo													
	GHG	GHG				6. Cent	er for Hard t	o Recycle						
	Factors	Factors	PA DEP Waste Characterization Study			Materia	als (CHaRM) (R&C) -	Capture	Total	Emissions	Diversion	GHG Check	Capture Rate
з	(SR)	(R or C)	September 2022	Est. %	Est. Tons		mastructu	10	Rate	Diversion	Reduction	(QA/QC)	(QA/QC)	(QA/QC)
4	MTCO2e	MTCO2e	Delaware County MSW	0.470	241,493	Capture Rate	Tons Captured	MTCO2e Reduced	%	(Tons)	(MTCO2e)	(Tons)	(MTCO2e)	%
32	-0	.6 -0.	3 Brown Glass Containers	0.4%	961									
33	-0	.6 -0.	3 Non-Recyclable Glass	0.9%	2,169									4
34	-J	.5 0.	V Food Waste 1 Yard Waste - Grass	14.8%	35,734									
36	NA	0.	1 Yard Waste - Other	5.6%	13 516									+
37	-1	.6 -1.	1 Wood - Unpainted	1.8%	4,342									<u> </u>
38	-1	.6 -1.	1 Wood - Painted	4.0%	9,655									
39	-4	.8 -3.	5 Textiles & Leather Products	6.8%	16,417									
40	na	na	Diapers & Sanitary Products	3.9%	9,413									
41	na	na	Animal By-Products	4.0%	9,655									
42	na	na	Fines	2.2%	5,306				_					l
43	na 21	1 1	Other Organics	2.4%	5,791									
44	-21	1 -1	3 Other Electronics	0.2%	1 686						_			+
46	-4	.8 -3.	5 Carpet & Carpet Padding	2.2%	5,308									+
47	na	na	Drywall/Gypsum Board	0.7%	1,686									
48	na	na	Concrete, Rock, Brick	0.5%	1,203									
49	0	.2 0.	3 Asphalt Roofing	0.2%	478									
50	na	na	Asphalt Paving	0.1%	241						_			
51	na	na	Other C&D Medically Deleted Wests	2.1%	5,067				-					
52	na	na	Lithium Batteries	0.1%	241									+
54	na	na	Automotive Batteries	0.0%	-									<u> </u>
55	na	na	Other Batteries	0.1%	241									
56	na	na	Other HHW	0.1%	241									
57	-1	.6 -2.	1 Bulky Materials	1.7%	4,101									
58	-1	.6 -2.	1 Furniture	3.3%	7,964									
59	na	na	Other Inorganics	0.6%	1,444									
61	na	na	Total	100%	241 241 493									
62			l dtal	10070	211,400									
63									QA/QC	QA/QC	QA/QC	QA/QC	QA/QC	QA/QC
64														
	$\langle \rangle$	Initia	tives EPA Emission Factors PA DE	P Compo:	sition Data	Spre	adsheet	Analysis	Residentia	al Analysi	s Commercial	Results	+	

Sources and Assumptions

Additional information should be included in the calculation spreadsheet at the top of the sheet and below the calculations (Figure 6). The top should include the municipality name and baseline year (2020). Below the calculations, add information about the data sources, assumptions, and any notes related to the analysis.

Include the sources for the following data:

- Destructive disposal tons
- Material characterization data
- Factors

For assumptions, identify if any proxy factors were used and state the material typically associated with a proxy. Also, identify if a proxy material characterization study was used.^{9 10}

Figure 6. The sources, assumptions, and notes section. This goes below the calculations on each spreadsheet containing the Zero Waste Analysis calculations.

X A	utoSave Or		9 · C	⊽ Delco Zero	o Waste Ar	alysis_Six In	iitiatives_AZ	WP Class_202	24 • Saved ∼	/	, Р s	earch			
File	Home	Insert P	age Layout	Formulas Da	ta Rev	iew Viev	v Help								
Ĉ	🔏 Cut		Arial	~)[11 ~	A^ A`	= =	≡ ≫ -	₫ <mark>₽</mark> W	rap Text		Number		-		
Paste ~	Copy	Y Painter	B I <u>∪</u> .	• 🗄 • 🖄 ·	<u> </u>	≡≡	≣∣€≣	•≡ 🛱 M	erge & Cente	er 👻	\$ ~ %	9 €00 .0	0 Cond Forma	itional Fo itting ~ 1	ormat as Table ¥
	Clipboard	L2		Font	L2		A	ignment		Гы	Num	ber	L2		
A44	~ :	\times .	fx -21.14273	380133794											
A	В		С		D	E	F	G	н	1	J	К	L	м	N
56															
Sourc	es Assum	tions, and I	Notes:												1
58 Booid		lo family ro	cidante												
70 Comn	mercial = mu	Itifamily, co	mmercial busine	esses, governm	ent, institu	tion, and lig	ht industry								
71 Sourc	·00:														
73 Chara	acterization D	ata													
74 75 Diana	PA DE	P Waste Ch	aracterization S	tudy September	2022										
76 Dispo	Penns	ylvania Dep	artment of Envir	onmental Protec	tion										-
7 Factor	rs: U.S. E	PA Waste R	eduction Model	Version 16											
79 Notes															1
1 If the M If the M If the r If the i	MTCO2E fac number in th initiative both	or in colum e MTCO2E recycled or	n A is highlighte Reduced colum composted ANI	d in light green, n is in bold, then D source reduce	then the G the GHG d materia	HG Emissi Emission F Is, then the	on Factor S actor Sourc Recycle or (ource Reduc e Reduction Compost em	tion was us was used to hissions fact	ed in the p estimat or was u	analysis. e the amoun se (to keep w	t of MTCO2E vith our cons	reduced by ervative est	/ that actio imates).	/n.
5 Assur	mptions:														
6 Using	WARM Emi	ssion Facto	rs for Materials a	and Pathways no	t in WARM	I was used	to help ider	tify proxy fac	tors to use						
7 8 Proxie	s Used in th	is Analysis													
39	Chara	cterization S	Study Material Ty	pe		Emission	Factor Mater	ial Type							
0	Comp	ostable pap	er			Mixed Pap	er (Source F	Reduction) 8	Food Wast	e (R or C)				_
2	#3-#7	Bottles Non-Bottle I	Rigid Containers	9		Mixed Plas	tic								
3	Durab	e/Bulky Rig	id Plastics			Mixed Plas	tic (SR facto	or only)							_
14	Rema	nder/Comp	osite Plastic			Mixed Plas	tic (SR facto	or only)							
95	Other /	Numinum				Aluminum	Cans								
97	Other	Von-Ferrous	s Metals			Mixed Meta	als								
8	Wood	- Unpainted				Dimension	nal Lumber								
9	Wood	- Painted				Dimension	nal Lumber								
00	I extile Electro	s & Leather	Products red Devices			Carpet Mixed Elec	tronics (P fs	ctor only)							
02	Other	Electronics				Mixed Elec	tronics (R fa	actor only)							
Note:	Not all mate	rials have e	missions factor	s or appropriate	proxies. T	herefore, th	e GHG emis	sions asso	ciated with t	he new					
03	and cannot b	e estimated	nor those mater	nar types without	an emiss	ion lactor.									_
05															
06															
07															
09															
10															
11															
<	>	Initiatives	EPA Emiss	sion Factors	PA DEF	Composi	tion Data	Spreads	sheet A	nalysis	Residential	Analys	is Comme	rcial	Results

 ⁹ <u>Modeling Reuse in EPA's Waste Reduction Model</u>
 ¹⁰ <u>Using WARM Emission Factors for Materials and Pathways Not in WARM</u>

Calculations

Once the spreadsheet is set up, the calculations can begin. The first calculation performed is estimating the capture rates. Capture rates (percentage) are calculated for **each material** that could be reduced or diverted through the initiative. The material types that receive a capture rate estimate can differ for each initiative and depend on the initiative. For example, a Wasted Food Prevention Program initiative will target the material type of food scraps. A Mandatory Recycling/Source Separation Policy will target traditional curbside recyclables (e.g., plastic bottles, metal cans, and paper). Not all material types will receive a capture rate; the material types that receive a capture rate will vary based on the initiative (Figure 7).

Capture rates are estimates (percentage) for the **material** that can be reduced or diverted from destructive disposal. The capture rate estimations are based on knowledge from other community implementations or best estimates based on reports and first-hand knowledge.

After the capture rate is estimated, multiply the percentage by the number of tons (column E) for each material type that contains a capture rate for the initiative. Next, multiply the estimated tons reduced or diverted by the appropriate factor (source reduction factor or recycling/composting factor) (Figure 7). The initiative determines the factor used. For example, a single-use plastic bag ban will use the source reduction factor. A Mandatory Recycling/Source Separation Policy would use the recycling or composting factor.

Figure 7. Calculate the capture rate, tons captured, and MTCO2E reduced for each material type associated with the initiative. Then, add up the totals in columns Q and R. For example, the capture rate for this sector initiative is in Cell P45.

×	📱 AutoSave 💽 💭 🐺 🏷 🗸 🤍 🔻 Delco Zero Waste Analysis_Six Initiatives_AZWP Class • Last Modified: Just now 🗸 👘 🔎 Search												
Fi	le Ho	me Inse	rt Page Layout Formulas Data	Revie	w View	Help							
	ΔX	Cut					- 1-						
	<u>_</u> <u></u>	Cut	Arial v 11 v A	A A	- = (=	:) 🌮 ~	ab Wrap	Text	Gene	ral	~		
F	aste	Сору 👻		Δ			E Marrie	0. C	¢.	0/	←0 .00		
	~ 🍕	Format Pai	nter	<u> </u>				e & Center	γ þ`	70 7	.00 →0		
	Clip	board		5		Aliar	nment		5	Number	5		
-													
A4		▼ ± ×	(√ <i>fx</i> MTCO2e										
4	٨	в	C	D	F	F	G	н	1	1	K		
	elaware (County, PA	RESIDENTIAL Diversion Potential A	nalvsis	L		9			,	N		
2 0	ommunit	MSW to Ir	cinerator 2020	laiyoio					_				
G	GHG GHG 4 Gizele Hez Factores and Little												
E	missions	Emission				1. Single	Use Foodwa	re and Litter	2. Pay-As-	You-Throw	(R) - Policy		
F	actors	s Factors	PA DEP Waste Characterization Study			Reducti	on Ordinance Roliev	e (R&C) -		& Program	n i i		
3 (SR)	(R or C)	September 2022	Est. %	Est. Tons		Policy						
4	-3.2	na	Remainder/Composite Plastic	1.7%	4,101	20%	820.1	-2648.2	5%	205.0			
5	-1.4	-0.2	Steel Cans	0.5%	1,203				15%	180.4	-43.2		
6	-4.8	-9.2	Aluminum Cans	0.6%	1,444				15%	216.6	-1984.1		
/	-4.8	-9.2	Other Forroug Motols	0.4%	961				15%	144.2 E79.0	-1320.5		
8 0	-1.4	-0.2	Other Non-Ferrous Metals	0.6%	3,809				15%	216.6	-138.8		
0	-0.6	-0.3	Clear Glass Containers	1.4%	3,376				15%	506.4	-152.6		
1	-0.6	-0.3	Green Glass Containers	0.4%	961				15%	144.2	-43.4		
2	-0.6	-0.3	Brown Glass Containers	0.4%	961				15%	144.2	-43.4		
3	-0.6	-0.3	Non-Recyclable Glass	0.9%	2,169				5%	108.4	-32.7		
4	-3.5	0.0	Food Waste	14.8%	35,734				15%	5360.1	14.7		
5 N	IA	0.1	Yard Waste - Grass	1.6%	3,859				15%	578.9	54.7		
6 N	IA 1.6	1.1	Yard Waste - Other	5.6%	13,516				15%	2027.5	2219.1		
8	-1.0	-1.1	Wood - Onpainted	4.0%	9,655				2%	193.1	-90.2		
9	-4.8	-3.5	Textiles & Leather Products	6.8%	16,417				2%	328.3	-1159.3		
0 n	a	na	Diapers & Sanitary Products	3.9%	9,413				2%	188.3			
1 n	а	na	Animal By-Products	4.0%	9,655				2%	193.1			
2 n	а	na	Fines	2.2%	5,306				2%	106.1			
3 <mark>n</mark>	a	na	Other Organics	2.4%	5,791				2%	115.8	10.0		
4	-21.1	-1.3	Electronics - Covered Devices	0.2%	4/8				2%	9.0	-12.0		
5	-21.1	-1.3	Carnet & Carnet Padding	2.2%	5 308				2%	106.2	-42.3		
7 n	a	na	Drywall/Gypsum Board	0.7%	1.686				2%	33.7	01 1.0		
8 n	а	na	Concrete, Rock, Brick	0.5%	1,203				2%	24.1			
9	0.2	0.3	Asphalt Roofing	0.2%	478				2%	9.6	2.5		
0 n	а	na	Asphalt Paving	0.1%	241				2%	4.8			
1 n	а	na	Other C&D	2.1%	5,067				2%	101.3			
2 n	a	na	Medically-Related Waste	0.1%	241				2%	4.8			
3 n 4 n	a	na	Automotive Batteries	0.0%	-				2%	0.0			
5 n	a	na	Other Batteries	0.1%	241				2%	4.8			
6 n	а	na	Other HHW	0.1%	241				2%	4.8			
7	-1.6	-2.1	Bulky Materials	1.7%	4,101				2%	82.0	-174.9		
8	-1.6	-2.1	Furniture	3.3%	7,964				2%	159.3	-339.7		
9 <mark>n</mark>	а	na	Other Inorganics	0.6%	1,444				2%	28.9			
0 <u>n</u>	а	na	PPE	0.1%	241	4.001	0.450.0	6404.4	2%	4.8	17170.0		
1			lota	100%	241,493	1.0%	2459.6	-0424.4	6.0%	20870.2	-1/1/2.8		
3													
-		1.22			·.·	Det	C	Anal	veis Posid	ontial	Angli i C		
4		Init	atives EPA Emission Factors	PA DEP (.ompositior	Data	Spreadshe	et Anal	ysis kesid	enual	Analysis C		

Once all the calculations for each material type for an initiative are complete, add up the total tons diverted at the bottom and the total MTCO2E reduced at the bottom. Then, calculate the estimated capture rate for the initiative by dividing the total tons estimated to be reduced or diverted by the total tons going to destructive disposal (column E – bottom cell) (Figure 8).

Figure 8. Add the total tons captured (column V) and total MTCO2E reduced (column W) for each initiative. Then, divide the total tons for the initiative by the tons going to destructive disposal (for Initiative 6, 3,586 tons / 241,493 tons = 1.5%) to estimate the capture rate for that initiative. Repeat these steps for each initiative analyzed. Figure 8 also shows the totals for each material type (capture rate, tons diverted, and MTCO2E) and QA/QC calculations.

×	AutoSave On O 🗄 🏷 < 🤄 👻 Delco Zero Waste Analysis_Six Initiatives_AZWP Class_2024 • Saved > 🖉 Search													
F	ile Hor	me Insert	Page Layout Formulas Data Rev	view Vie	w Help									
ĺ		Cut	Arial ~ 11 ~ A^ A	= =	≡ ≫ -	ab v	/rap Text	(General	•		Not	mal_FRANK	Normal
	Paste	Copy •	B I <u>U</u> → <u>→</u> → <u>→</u> →	==	= = =	🗉 🛄 N	1erge & Cent	ter ~	\$ ~ %	9 .00 .00	Conditional F	ormat as Go	od	Neutral
	Clink	pormat Painte	Font 5		Ali	anment		5	Num	ber 🗔	ronnating		Style	
	Cilpe					grintent		141	Hum				Style	,
F5	5	<u>~</u> : [X]	$\sqrt{f_x}$											
- 24	А	В	C	D	E	U	V	W	х	Y	Z	AA	AB	AC
1	Delaware	County, PA	RESIDENTIAL Diversion Potential An	alysis										
2	Communi		ncinerator 2020											
	GHG	GHG				6. Cente	er for Hard t	o Recycle						
	Factors	Factors	PA DEP Waste Characterization Study			Materia	Is (CHaRM)	(R & C) -	Canture	Total	GHG	Total Diversion	GHG Check	Canture Rate
з	(SR)	(R or C)	September 2022	Est. %	Est. Tons		mirastructu	le	Rate	Diversion	Reduction	(QA/QC)	(QA/QC)	(QA/QC)
4	MTCO2e	MTCO2e	Delaware County MSW		241,493	Capture Rate	Tons Captured	MTCO2e Reduced	%	(Tons)	(MTCO2e)	(Tons)	(MTCO2e)	%
32	-0.0	6 -0.3	Brown Glass Containers	0.4%	961				60%	576.7	(173.8)	576.7	(173.8)	0.(
33	-0.0	6 -0.3	Non-Recyclable Glass	0.9%	2,169	5%	108.4	-32	35%	759.0	(228.7)	759.0	(228.7)	0.3
34	-3.	5 0.0	Food Waste	14.8%	35,734				60%	21,440.2	58.7	21,440.2	58.7	0.6
35	NA	0.1	Yard Waste - Grass	1.6%	3,859				60%	2,315.4	218.8	2,315.4	218.8	0.6
36	NA	1.1	Yard Waste - Other	5.6%	13,516				60%	8,109.8	8,876.3	8,109.8	8,876.3	0.0
37	-1.0	0 -1.1 6 1.1	Wood - Onpainted	1.0%	4,342				21%	2,606,8	(1,325.0)	2,606,8	(1,325.0)	0.2
39	-4	8 -3.5	Textiles & Leather Products	6.8%	16 417	5%	820.8	-2898	32%	5 253 3	(18 548 4)	5 253 3	(18 548 4)	0.2
40	na	na	Diapers & Sanitary Products	3.9%	9,413	070	020.0	2000	27%	2.541.6	-	2,541.6	-	0.2
41	na	na	Animal By-Products	4.0%	9,655				22%	2,124.1	-	2,124.1	-	0.22
42	na	na	Fines	2.2%	5,306				22%	1,167.2	-	1,167.2	-	0.22
43	na	na	Other Organics	2.4%	5,791				22%	1,274.0	-	1,274.0	-	0.22
44	-21.1	1 -1.3	Electronics - Covered Devices	0.2%	478	10%	47.8	-60	. 32%	153.0	(192.0)	153.0	(192.0)	0.32
45	-21.1	1 -1.3	Other Electronics	0.7%	1,686	10%	168.6	-211	32%	539.4	(676.9)	539.4	(676.9)	0.32
46	-4.	8 -3.5	Carpet & Carpet Padding	2.2%	5,308				22%	1,167.8	(4,123.1)	1,167.8	(4,123.1)	0.22
47	na	na	Caparata Dask Brisk	0.7%	1,000				22%	370.8	-	370.8	-	0.24
40	0 1	2 0.3	Asphalt Roofing	0.3%	478				22%	105.2	27.8	105.2	27.8	0.22
50	na	na	Asphalt Paving	0.1%	241				22%	53.1	-	53.1	-	0.22
51	na	na	Other C&D	2.1%	5,067				22%	1,114.6	-	1,114.6	-	0.22
52	na	na	Medically-Related Waste	0.1%	241				22%	53.1	-	53.1	-	0.22
53	na	na	Lithium Batteries	0.0%	-	5%			27%	-	-	-	-	
54	na	na	Automotive Batteries	0.0%	-	5%			27%	-	-	-	-	
55	na	na	Other Batteries	0.1%	241	5%	12.1		27%	65.2	-	65.2	-	0.2
56	na 4 J	na c 0.4	Other HHVV Bullov Materiale	0.1%	241	5%	12.1	437	27%	65.2	(2 264 2)	65.2	(2.364.0)	0.2
58	-1.0	6 -2.1	Furniture	3 3%	4,101	5%	205.0	-437	27%	2 150 4	(2,301.2)	2 150 4	(2,301.2)	0.2
59	na	na -2.1	Other Inorganics	0.6%	1,444	576	330.Z	-043	22%	317.7	(4,500.1)	317.7	- (4,500.1)	0.2
60	na	na	PPE	0.1%	241				22%	53.1	-	53.1	-	0.22
61			Total	100%	241,493	1.5%	3586.7	-5894	45%	108,242.4	(102,840.0)	108,242.4	(102,840.0)	0.4
62									0.45	108,242.4	(102,840.0)	108,242.4	(102,840.0)	
63									QA/QC	QA/QC	IQA/QC	QA/QC	IQA/QC	QA/QC
64	< >	Initiat	EPA Emission Factors	Compos	ition Data	Spread	sheet	Analysis F	Residential	Analysis	ommercial	Posulte	+	
_	. /	muat	ETA Emission ractors FA DE	compos	and Data	spread	wheet '			Andrysis C	onnertia	Repuits		

Repeat these steps for all initiatives in each sector being analyzed. Once each initiative has been analyzed, add up the total capture rate, total tons estimated to be diverted, and total MTCO2E estimated to be reduced for each material type (across the rows) (Grey columns in Figure 8). Each material type's total capture rate cannot exceed 100%. Finally, double-check all calculations by performing QA/QC calculations.

To perform QA/QC calculations, add the tons of materials estimated to be diverted and tons of MTCO2E estimated to be reduced across rows and totals down the columns of X, V, Z, AA, AB, and AC. Make sure the numbers match. The best way to work through QA/QC is to read this document and Zero Waste Analysis Tool – Manual 15

have an example spreadsheet open where the calculations are completed. To check the capture rate, divide the total tons for each material by the total tons that the material represents in the destructive disposal stream (e.g., for Steel Cans in Figure 8, divide 781.7 tons by 1,203 tons, which equals 65%).

Interpreting and Presenting the Results

The Zero Waste Analysis Tool's results tab summarizes the results across sectors and initiatives to estimate the additional tons diverted annually and the estimated GHG emissions reduced **annually** once all initiatives are implemented. Therefore, the results tab should include data for each sector and initiative and the total data (Figure 8).

Figure 9. The results tab shows the tons of materials estimated to be reduced or diverted from destructive disposal annually for each initiative by sector and total. It also shows the GHG emissions estimated to be reduced by each initiative by sector and the total annually.

🛛 AutoSave 💽 🗗 🌱 V 🖓 V 🖓 V 🖘 Delco Zero Waste Analysis_Six Initiatives_AZWP Class_2024 + Saved V 🖉 Search													
File	File <u>Home</u> Insert Page Layout Formulas Data Review View Help												
Ĉ	Arial Image:												
Paste ~	Second Painter B I U → E → A → E = = = = =	🗐 🗮 Merge & Cente	r • \$ • %	• 50 .00 Con Form	ditional Formatas atting ~ Table ~	Good Ne	eutral	Calculation					
	Clipboard تو Font Ali	gnment	Num Num	ber 🗔		Styles							
H24	\sim : $\times \sim f_x$												
	H24 \checkmark I $\land \checkmark$ Jx												
1	5	C	0	L		<u> </u>							
2 RES	SULTS												
3		Reside	ential	Comm	ercial	Tota	al						
	Initiatives	Diversion Potential	GHG Emission Reduction Estimate	Diversion	GHG Emission Reduction Estimate	Diversion	GHG Emission Reduction	n					
4		(Tons)	(MTCO2E)	Potential (Tons)	(MTCO2E)	Potential (Tons)	(MTCO2E)						
5 1	Single Use Foodware and Litter Reduction Ordinance	2,460	-6,424	4,955	-9,536	7,415	-15,96	1					
6 2	Pay-As-You-Throw	20,870	-17,173			20,870	-17,17	3					
7 3	Universal Recycling	13,232	-28,514	16,778	-36,256	30,011	-64,77	0					
8 4	Universal Composting	19,795	124	16,235	-914	36,030	-78	9					
9 5	Outreach, Education, and Technical Assistance	48,299	-44,959	44,034	-39,893	92,332	-84,85	3					
10 6	Center for Hard to Recycling Materials (CHaRM)	3,587	-5,894	1,731	-1,364	5,318	-7,25	8					
11	Total	108,242	-102,840	83,734	-87,964	191,976	-190,80	4					
12						191,976	-190,80	4 QA/QC					
13													
14	Baseline 2020												
16	Delaware County - 2020 Data	PA DEP - tons	Analysis Results										
17	Materials - Incineration & Landfill	467,769	275,793										
18	Diverted Materials (residential and commercial)	239,799	431,775										
19	Total Generation	707,568	707,568										
20	Diversion Rate	34%	61%										

The total tons estimated to be reduced or diverted from destructive disposal annually can be added to the baseline data. For example, a community had a 34% diversion rate and diverted 239,799 tons of materials from destructive disposal before any Zero Waste initiatives. The Zero Waste Analysis Tool estimated that 191,976 tons of materials could be reduced or diverted annually through the Zero Waste initiatives. So, 191,976 tons can be added to the 239,799 tons for 431,775 tons annually, increasing the community's diversion to 61%. Additionally, showing the new diversion rate in a chart (Figure 10) is a great way to show the results.



Figure 10. Once all Zero Waste initiatives are implemented, the new estimated diversion potential is 61%.

The GHG emissions results that estimate annual emission reductions are hard to digest and visualize, so we suggest using the US EPA Greenhouse Gas Equivalencies Calculator¹¹ to interpret the results. For this analysis, we estimated that 190,804 MTCO2E will be reduced annually once all six initiatives are implemented. Using the equivalencies calculator, that equals the greenhouse gas emissions from 44,323 cars driven for one year. The results can be made into a graphic. Below is a screenshot showing the results.

190,804 Metric Tons v of Carbon Dioxide (CO ₂) equiva This is equivalent to greenhouse gas emissions from:	lent			
45,412 gasoline-powered passenger vehicles of	driven for one year 💿 🛛 🦲	487,994,116	miles driven by an average gasoline-powered passenger vehicle ⑦	
This is equivalent to CO2 emissions from:				
21,470,012 gallons of gasoline consumed ⑦		18,743,026	gallons of diesel consumed ⑦	
210,280,630 pounds of coal burned ⑦		2,526	tanker trucks' worth of gasoline ⑦	
24,883 homes' energy use for one year ⑦	^	37,656	homes' electricity use for one year ⑦	
1,049 railcars' worth of coal burned (?)		441,752	barrels of oil consumed ⑦	
8,765,359 propane cylinders used for home barb	eques ⑦	0.049	coal-fired power plants in one year ⑦	

¹¹ US EPA Greenhouse Gas Equivalencies Calculator

This is equivalent to greenhouse gas emissions avoided by:		
66,251 tons of waste recycled instead of landfilled ⑦		9,464 garbage trucks of waste recycled instead of landfilled ⑦
8,287,750 trash bags of waste recycled instead of landfilled ⑦		50.2 wind turbines running for a year ⑦
This is equivalent to carbon sequestered by:		
3,154,961 tree seedlings grown for 10 years ⑦	B	222,769 acres of U.S. forests in one year ③
1,224 acres of U.S. forests preserved from conversion to cropland in one year ⑦		

Created by Zero Waste USA in August 2023

Updated in April 2024

Zero Waste Analysis Tool – Manual